Township of Lower Makefield

Board of Supervisors

FROM: James R. Majewski, PE, PP, CFM

RE: Summary of the Planning Commission Meeting on 10/30/2024

At the Planning Commission meeting held on October 30, 2024:
1. Moved to Approve the Minutes of October 7, 2024 as written

2. K-9 Resorts / KinderCare
Conditional Use to allow a Kennel Use
Tax Parcel 20-016-036-001
H-C Historic Commercial Zoning District
748 Stony Hill Road
Proposed plan to subdivide a 7.05 acre lot into 2 commercial lots. One lot to contain
the existing daycare and one lot to create a 8,245 sq ft canine resort (kennel use) with
3,400 sq ft of retail, outdoor fenced in exercise/daycare area with 34 parking spots.

The Planning Commission voted 5-0 to recommend to the Board of Supervisors approval
of the Conditional Use so long as it is memorialized and agreed to that a fence in good
working order shall be constructed and maintained between this proposed facility and the
existing child care facility.

1100 Edgewood Road (267) 274-1100

Yardley Pa 19067 Fax: (215) 493-3053
Website: www.Imt.org



Conditional Use Application to Lower Makefield Township Board of Supervisors

The applicant is requesting conditional use approval of the proposed kennel use. The following
are the standards for permitted uses within the H-C Historic Commercial Zoning District.

B. Conditional uses.

(1) Uses other than those set forth above may be permitted in the H-C District by the Board of
Supervisors as a conditional use. Conditional use approval may be granted provided that the use
for which such approval is sought complies with all of the following standards:

(a) Such use shall be of the same general nature as those permitted as of right.

(b) Such use shall be of the same general nature and character as were the uses in the original
village.

(c) Such use is in accordance with the spirit, purpose and intent of the Historical Commercial
District.

(d) Such use conforms with all of the other applicable requirements of the Historical Commercial
District and of this chapter in general.

(e) The conditional use standards of Article XXI1 of this chapter.l!

Under the Zoning Ordinance, the only section that covers the rapidly growing modern "doggie
daycare" operation is the decades-old definition of a Kennel. Applicant will present as an
example the only Kennel in the Township is a 100-year-old “Yardley Animal Hospital” but what
is proposed to be built on the Property is a luxury dog hotel with private suites, filtered air, and a
supervised small outdoor exercise area. This Use will allow the owners to provide a much-needed
service to the Township residents in an area with very few residences nearby; preserve a heavily
wooded area in a very heavily developed section of the Township; and add minimal traffic
compared to surrounding uses and occupancies. Testimony will be provided by the applicant,
property owner, engineer, traffic engineer and sound engineer regarding the proposed use.

(20) Kennels. The keeping of more than three dogs that are more than six months old for
breeding, training, sale or boarding for a fee or as pets, provided that the following conditions
are met:

(a) Minimum net lot area shall be: five acres.

(b) No animal shelter or runway shall be located closer than 150 feet from a property boundary.
(c) The total number of dogs on the property shall not exceed five dogs per acre, excluding dogs
under six months old.

The applicant also has a pending zoning appeal request (Z-24-3), if approved, would permit a
Variance from Township Zoning Ordinance Section 20-68.A(20) to allow for a kennel use on
2.905 acres of the 7.057 acre property where 5 acres is required, allow up to 125 dogs where no
more than 5 dogs per acre are permitted, and allow a rear yard exercise area where 150 feet from
a property boundary is required; Section 200-80 to forego the required loading berth; and
reauthorize the special exception and variances granted for the existing day care use per Zoning
Hearing Board Order for Appeal #439 dated 1/7/1986.


https://ecode360.com/11226572#11226572
https://ecode360.com/11226573#11226573
https://ecode360.com/11226574#11226574
https://ecode360.com/11226575#11226575
https://ecode360.com/11226576#11226576
https://ecode360.com/11226577#11226577
https://ecode360.com/11226578#11226578
https://ecode360.com/11228328#11228328
https://ecode360.com/11226557#ft11226578-1
https://ecode360.com/11227527#11227527
https://ecode360.com/11227528#11227528
https://ecode360.com/11227529#11227529
https://ecode360.com/11227530#11227530

TOWNSHIP OF LOWER MAKEFIELD
PLANNING COMMISSION
MINUTES — OCTOBER 30, 2024

A meeting of the Planning Commission of the Township of Lower Makefield was
held in the Municipal Building on October 30, 2024. Mr. Bush called the meeting
to order at 7:30 p.m.

Those present:

Planning Commission: Tony Bush, Chair
Tejinder Gill, Vice Chair
Colin Coyle, Secretary (joined meeting in progress)
Adrian Costello, Member
John Delorenzo, Member

Others: Dan McLoone, Planner
Maureen Burke-Carlton, Township Solicitor
Pat Foley, Township Engineer
John Lewis, Supervisor Liaison

APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM THE 10/7/24 MEETING

Mr. Costello moved, Mr. DelLorenzo seconded and it was unanimously carried to
approve the Minutes of October 7, 2024 as written. Mr. Coyle was not present
for the vote.

#697- K9 CONDITIONAL USE DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL

748 Stony Hill Road

Tax Parcel #20-016-036-001

H-C Historic Commercial Zoning

Proposed plan to subdivide a 7.05 acre lot into 2 Commercial lots. One lot to
contain the existing daycare and one lot to create an 8.245 square foot canine
resort with 3,400 square feet of retail, outdoor fenced-in exercise/daycare area
with 34 parking spots

Mr. Ron Rusk was present and stated he is a partner in MRG Stony Hill, which
owns the property. He stated they have owned the KinderCare property for
about 12 years. Mr. Rusk stated also present is Christine Miller who is the
owner/operator of the K9 Hotel Resort in Horsham, which she has operated
for a number of years. Mr. Rusk stated they will have presentations from



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 2 of 19

their engineer, traffic engineer, and their sound engineer who has done a
comprehensive sound study of the area, and will discuss how the noise from
the K9 Hotel project will affect the surrounding area.

Mr. Rusk showed a slide of the general area and the location of the site.

He showed the location of the existing KinderCare and parking lot, the Care
Facility across the street, 1-295, the residences at Fieldstone, the Penn Com-
munity Bank, and the Patterson Farm. The location of the proposed K9 Hotel
was shown.

Mr. Rusk showed a slide demonstrating how heavily wooded the site is.
He showed the location of the area where there were previously green-
houses as well as the old retention basin for the greenhouses. He showed
the location of the proposal which is as far away as they can get from the
KinderCare and everything else back by 295 and the Patterson Farm.

A rendering of the proposed building was shown, and they tried to keep it to
the spirit of the Historical/Commercial area. He stated it somewhat represents
a barn, and they will go to HARB to get their input, and make any modifications
that HARB feels are necessary.

Another slide was shown of the Patterson Farm, KinderCare, the proposed K9
Hotel, a Commercial area which includes a Veterinarian office, and Residential.

Mr. Rusk stated they felt it was important that KinderCare be part of the process,
and they spoke to KinderCare which sent a letter, a copy of which was provided
to the Planning Commission this evening, indicating how they feel about the

K9 Hotel being within 300’ to 400’; and they feel that it is a great idea with great
harmony between a parent dropping off children and dogs at the same time.

Mr. Rusk stated they were before the Township about a year ago and since
then they have had discussions about the difference between a K9 Hotel and

a kennel. He stated since there is no other designation in the Township’s
Zoning Ordinance, they had to call the K9 Resort Hotel a kennel. An aerial was
shown of the Yardley Kennel which has been there for 75 years. He showed the
open, outdoor dog runs. A slide was shown of the Yardley Kennel and parking
lot which he does not feel “anybody would be proud to have sitting on the
highway where people could see it.” He stated this is not what they are
proposing for the K9 Hotel. A video was shown of what the K9 Hotel is.



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 3 of 19

Mr. Rusk stated over the past ten to twelve years they have been approached
by a number of people who wanted to develop adjacent to the KinderCare.

He stated he and his partners have taken the position that it is a heavily-treed
lot, and they never found a use in all that time that did not want to cut down all
of the trees. He stated the Zoning Ordinance would allow them to build a lot of
apartments, office buildings, and a shopping center; however, they did not feel
that was appropriate. He stated when this use came along, they felt that it
offered an opportunity to save trees and that it would be an environmentally-
sensitive way to develop the site which is why they decided to move forward
with this opportunity.

Ms. Miller stated she has owned the K9 Resort in Horsham for three years,
and it has been very successful. She reviewed the history of the franchise
which opened in 2005, and there are currently 34 resorts Nationally.

She stated all she hires are dog lovers who bring to management any attention
that needs to be given to any dog, and her clients feel comfortable leaving
their dogs with them. Ms. Miller stated they provide luxury boarding which

is all inclusive and includes day care during the day or private play, Blue
Buffalo prescription food, and a low-stress, high-enjoyment environment.

She stated they do not do grooming as they do not want to do anything that
causes the dogs stress. She stated there are three levels of accommodations —
Luxury Suites which are 8 by 8 suites with a TV that plays Animal Planet or the
Dog Channel, Executive Rooms which are 5 by 7. They all have the Kuranda
beds. They also have more traditional compartments for dogs who are used to
sleeping in a crate or a more-enclosed area at home. Slides were shown of the
various accommodations.

Ms. Miller stated they also offer day care. She stated dogs that are boarding
with them have the option to play in the day care during the day; and they
also offer day care on a daily basis for customers to drop off their dogs, and
pick them up at the end of the day. Ms. Miller stated there are benefits to
doggy day care because dogs left at home are lonely even if someone comes
into the home to check on them as they are still left alone for a good part of
the day. She stated socialization is also good for dogs as they learn to play
with other dogs and make friends. She stated it is also a good way for them
to get exercise.

Ms. Miller stated there are two different day care rooms one for dogs 30 pounds
and under and the other 30 pounds and over. Every dog coming into the facility
has to be fully vaccinated, and any dog going into day care has to go through an
evaluation process where they first get acclimated to the area and are then



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 4 of 19

introduced to one dog at a time in a private play yard. Once they are with three
or four dogs and not showing any signs of stress or aggression, they are taken
into the larger group and are monitored for the rest of the day. She stated they
do their evaluations for four to six hours to see how they do through the whole
day.

Ms. Miller stated they also offer personal play time. She stated they do not
allow any dogs in the building that are not 100% people friendly; however,
there are some dogs that do not enjoy being around other dogs. She stated
for those dogs they do personal play time where they are in a room for the day
but six times per day one of the staff members will take them to a separate,
private play yard and play with them.

Ms. Miller stated they also offer baths. She stated every dog goes home
having had a bath after playing. She stated they only do baths to their clients,
and do not offer baths to the public as a drop-in.

Ms. Miller stated safety and care are their primary focuses. She stated there
are cameras and surveillance, and they can also survey it from their home
laptops and phones. She stated there is a security system, sprinkler service,
fire alarm service, monthly pest control, and they partner with local vets.
She stated if a dog needs veterinary care, they try to use the dog’s normal
vet first; however, if they are not able to, depending on the issue, they have
a visiting vet who can come in, and they also partner with local vets who are
nearby and with emergency vets if needed.

Ms. Miller stated they pre-register all of their guests. She stated day care is

7 a.m. to 7 p.m. during the week and 9 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. on the weekends.
She stated the first day when they bring the dog in for evaluation, they fill out
paperwork, questions are asked about the dog, and it takes a few minutes;
and after that when they bring the dog in check-in takes about 30 seconds.
She stated at pick-up time, the person at the front desk recognizes the
customer, and goes to get the dog and it takes just a few minutes.

Ms. Miller stated boarding check-in is 9:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m. which is so that
they can avoid the busy day care rush. She stated boarding check-in takes a
few minutes as they want to make sure that they have all the contact informa-
tion, feeding instructions, etc.



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 5 of 19

Ms. Miller stated on Saturday and Sunday staff is there from about 6:00 a.m.

to 7:30/8:00 p.m.; but the lobby is open to customers from 9:00 a.m. to 5:30 p.m.
She stated at Horsham they only get a handful of day care drop-in customers on
weekends, and it is mostly the boarding drop-off and pick-up on the weekends

so that there are not as many dogs in total in the building on the weekends.

Ms. Miller stated their peak times are holidays and in the summer.

Ms. Miller stated all play yards are fully fenced in with fences that are made to
be sound dampening. She stated they have canine grass as the turf and the
liguids drain straight through, and any solid waste is picked up immediately
and put in trash cans and then put in the dumpster when they close at night.
She stated the inside and the outside of the building is disinfected every day
including the rooms, the hallways, lobby, the day care, and the outdoor area
including the fences, turfs, and play equipment.

Ms. Miller showed a slide of the type of delivery vehicles coming to the site.
She stated typically it is Amazon, UPS, or FedEx; and there are not large
trailers coming in.

Mr. Rusk asked Ms. Miller about the maximum number of dogs there could

be and the peak times. Ms. Miller stated the average number of dogs in the
building during the week during non-peak is between 60 and 80. She stated
during peak times it can get up to just over 100. She stated peak times would
be the week between Christmas and New Year’s, spring break, and in summer.
She stated they are not over 100 dogs every day in the summer, but there are
week around 4™ of July and key vacation weeks where they have that many
dogs. She stated there are not 100 dogs outside at once. She stated they
have the large day care and the small day care and they have a certain per-
centage of dogs that are on private play and in their rooms most of the day.
She stated even the dogs within the day care, 80% are inside at any given time
as they go out and play and then come in and lay down. She stated another
group would then go out. Ms. Miller stated there are always staff members
with them. She added that the staff goes through a full training process.

She stated staff are with the dogs at all times in day care; and if a dog is
bringing the energy up and it starts to get noisy, they give that dog a break.

If multiple dogs are barking, they pull them inside and close the doors.

Ms. Miller stated they also keep the dogs inside if it is too hot, too cold,
raining, etc.; and they just let them out for a few minutes every hour.

She stated they can control the energy and noise levels within the day care.



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 6 of 19

Mr. Gill asked the number of employees. Ms. Miller stated there are about 25
total employees but not all there at the same time, and generally there would
be 8 to 12 depending on how busy they are. She stated the employees rotate
between each of the two day cares and the kennel area where they do the
feeding, cleaning the rooms, and bathing; and they rotate them so that they
are all able to do any of the jobs and so that it does not get too monotonous
for the employees being in one area all day.

Mr. DelLorenzo stated when they were present a year ago, there was discussion
about whether a car could get around a parked car. Mr. Rusk stated they have
expanded the parking to mitigate some of the concerns expressed previously,
and the engineer will address this.

Mr. Coyle had joined the meeting at this point, and he asked how many parking
spaces are at the Horsham facility, and Ms. Miller stated there are 15.

Mr. Coyle stated they are able to handle 100 dogs a day with 15 parking spaces,
and Ms. Miller agreed.

Mr. Rusk stated at the Horsham facility they are in a Commercial area, but there
are residences adjacent to them, and he asked if there were ever any concerns
from residents in close proximity to the Horsham facility; and Ms. Miller stated
they have not had any.

Mr. Gill expressed concern with odors given the trash is only picked up weekly.
Ms. Miller stated they use biodegradable bags which are put in green garbage

bags which are then put in the dumpster, and there is not an odor. She stated
they disinfect often and remind the staff to pick up the waste immediately.

Mr. Kevin Tennant, Vice President of Franchise Operations of K9 Resorts, was
present. He stated they currently have 37 locations across the Country including
some stand-alone buildings, in-line Retail buildings, locations that are nearby
other day cares and Residential areas, and in Corporate parks. He stated the
five operating locations they have in Pennsylvania cover all of those different
types of locations. Mr. Tennant stated they currently have about 170 locations
in development in 27 States, and they pride themselves on the safety and

health of the dogs in their facilities.

Mr. Tennant stated with regard to safety and security, the outdoor area is
surrounded by an 8’ solid fence that has sound-mitigating qualities called
Bufftech which is a rotationally-molded vinyl fence that absorbs 98% of
direct sound waves which helps with sound in the area. He stated the reason



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 7 of 19

for the 8 is that dogs cannot jump over an 8’ fence so it keeps the dogs in and
people out. He stated with regard to the interior, they are broken up into
multiple zones. He stated there are two separate day care rooms which are
secure rooms with keypad locks and multiple points of egress that dogs would
have to pass to get out of the room. He stated the boarding areas are also very
secure. He stated every area of the building has a secure door that only staff
members can access, and the only one used on a regular basis is the exit in the
lobby. He stated there are emergency exits. He stated there is a vestibule
blocking the external door so that if a dog were to get away from a pet tech,
they would have to get through two doors in order to exit the building.

Mr. Tennant stated with regard to Operations, they do not let the dogs run
throughout the building; and when they are being moved between the bathing
room or a boarding location to a day care room, they are led by trained staff on
a lead. The only time dogs are off leash is when they are secured in their
boarding rooms overnight or in the day care rooms in the group play area that
is supervised by the vet techs. Dogs are also on a lead when they are brought
outside to their owners.

Mr. Rusk stated the building is designed inside to accommodate 80 to 120
dogs, and Mr. Tennant agreed. Mr. Tennant stated they look at the capacity
of the square footage of the building, and they set their capacity based on
the size of the day care rooms. He stated there is a calculation that is the
industry standard which is 18 square feet for a large dog and 12 square feet
for a small dog. He stated they also optimize the boarding facility for the
three different levels of accommodations. He stated they want to make
sure that there is enough space in the building to drive revenue for their
Franchise owners but also make it a comfortable and funenvironment for
the dogs. He stated they do not want a facility that just has indoor/outdoor
pens and chain link fences.

Mr. Rusk stated what is proposed is on the smaller end of their K9 facilities at
8,000 square feet, and Mr. Tennant agreed. Mr. Tennant added that they have
locations that are up to 15,000 square feet with a peak capacity of 250 dogs.

Mr. Costello asked if the outdoor area is exclusively for daylight only, or is there
lighting since in the winter it gets dark at 5:00 p.m. Mr. Tennant stated there is
outdoor lighting although it is not parking lot lighting that would illuminate the
whole area, and there are downlights that are on the building facade to light the
turf yards only. Mr. Costello asked if there is a time when the lights would be
turned off. Mr. Tennant stated the day care operations are Monday through



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 8 of 19

Friday 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. and roughly between 6:30 p.m. and 7:00 p.m. is
when most of the dogs are in for the night. He stated boarding dogs are in their
rooms, and the day care dogs are being picked up. He stated they close to the
public at 7:00 p.m. He stated dogs are only in the yard during the times the

day care is open.

Mr. Gill asked if a dog has ever escaped since safety would be a top priority
given that there is a day care next door. Mr. Tennant stated there has been
one instance where a dog was able to get out of the lobby into the parking lot,
and they were able to recover the dog; but they have never had an instance
where a dog has gone to any neighboring property in the history of the
company.

Mr. Coyle asked about staff training requirements. Ms. Miller stated it is a
combination of on-line and pairing them up with a Supervisor-level employee.
She stated the on-line training is a series of video and power point presenta-
tions with quizzes at the end of each section. She stated it takes several
hours to get through the on-line portion. She stated at her resort, they pair
them up with a Supervisor for as long as needed which is usually about two
weeks. She stated before they are allowed to be on their own, one of the
Managers goes through a training checklist with the employee; and they have
to show the Manager how to do everything on the checklist, and they can
then be on their own.

Mr. Tennant stated all of their Franchise owners go through a two-week
training course at their Corporate Office and at their flagship location in
Fanwood. He stated the first week is classroom-style learning, and they then
act as an employee at the Fanwood location doing all of the things that the
staff has to do so they have a real-life tutorial. He stated they also do
supplemental training with Webinars when there is a change in their system,
and they require every employee to be Certified through their Learning
Management System. Their Corporate Office has the ability to observe and
make sure every employee has passed that Certification.

Mr. Coyle asked Ms. Miller if, in addition to owning the operating the Horsham
location, she would own and operate this location as well; and Ms. Miller agreed.
Mr. Rusk stated Ms. Miller lives in the area, and Ms. Miller stated she lives much
closer to this location than she does to Horsham. She stated she will also
probably bring over some of her management team from Horsham to this
location.



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 9 of 19

Mr. Ryan Whitmore, Senior Project Manager Landcore Engineering, the site
engineer, was present. A slide of the Site Plan was shown. Mr. Whitmore
stated they have been working on the questions/concerns that were expressed
over the past year. He stated the proposal is to have a multi-use building with
the K9 space to front on Stony Hill Road which will be 8,245 square feet as well
as a speculative Retail use with the use to be determined. He stated Retail is a
permitted Use in the H/C Zone, and it would be a use what would be compli-
mentary to the K9 Resort. Mr. Whitmore noted the brown-shaded area on the
Site Plan on the left side of the building which faces Patterson Farm and 1-95
which is the outdoor exercise play area, and is about 2,250 square feet in size.
He stated there is a large black line that surrounds the outdoor play area, and
that is the 8’ high sound fence that was discussed earlier. He stated the area
will be enclosed on all four sides — three sides by the sound fence, and the fourth
side by the building itself. He stated the building acts as a physical barrier
between the outdoor play area and the adjacent day care. He stated there is
also a chain link fence that will be proposed along the Subdivision line that will
separate the day care side from the K9 Resort side which is an additional barrier
in case a dog were to get out.

Mr. Whitmore stated the Subdivision line is shown on the Site Plan that will be
another component of the Application. He stated of the 7 acre tract about 60%
will be devoted to the K9 side of the tract with the balance being the day care.
Mr. Whitmore stated each of the Lots complies with the H/C criteria. He stated
the kennel use is “tricky” as to the overall Zoning analysis and interpretation of
how this project will be navigated through the “entitlement” process. He stated
a traditional kennel requires a minimum Lot area of 5 acres; and the subdivided
canine Lot is about 4 acres. The day care Lot is about 3 acres. He stated the H/C
Zone requires a minimum Lot area of 10,000 square feet. He stated depending
on the interpretation of what the K9 Resort is will determine what level of relief
they will be having a discussion with the Zoning Hearing Boad about. He stated
independent of the 5 acre minimum Lot area, both Lots that are created as part
of the Subdivision will be compliant with the area and bulk criteria of the H/C
Zone.

Mr. Whitmore noted on the Plan the access coming off of Stony Hill Road, and
the driveway aligns with the Senior Living driveway across Stony Hill Road.

The location of the driveway is where the existing curb cut is located today
where there is a gravel-driveway access to get to the Patterson Farm. He stated
there was an Easement, but the gravel driveway has been decommissioned, and
the Easement no longer exists and has been eliminated from the Deed. He stated



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 10 of 19

that existing curb cut is being repurposed and widened to accommodate the
vehicles that would be anticipated for this Use including deliveries, garbage
trucks, and emergency vehicles.

Mr. Whitmore stated there had been a question at a prior meeting about the
cross circulation through the property during pick-up and drop-off. He stated
there are 34 parking spaces proposed compared to Ms. Miller’s other location
which has 15 parking spaces which accommodates their use. Mr. Rusk stated
since the last meeting, they expanded the parking which involved cutting
down more trees. Mr. Whitmore stated there could be more parking with
larger spaces; however, that would involve additional impervious coverage
and additional tree impact. He stated for the Parking Demand Analysis, they
looked at what the canine demands are; and for a similar location while they
had 15, they had proposed 20 on the Plan. He stated with regard to the
Retail portion, the ITE projections show the need for 10 spaces, and they

are proposing 14. They have therefore proposed a total of 34 spaces.

Mr. Whitmore stated they tried to minimize the development’s footprint

and the impact to the trees.

Mr. Whitmore stated with regard to the loading operations the K9 Resort and
the spec Retail building are uses that do not warrant a full-time, long-term
loading zone, and in an effort to minimize the impervious coverage and the
tree impact, they are omitting that from the Plan; and they will discuss that
with the Zoning Hearing Board. He stated trash collection is in the back side of
the parking lot.

Mr. Whitmore stated while stormwater management is not in the scope of the
discussion for the Use, they looked at and performed some stormwater
management testing in the green shaded area shown on the Plan labeled
“tentative stormwater management area,” and it is proposed in the location
of the existing driveway within the Easement. He stated that area is already
cleared from the previous driveway so it is an appropriate location to take
advantage of for a stormwater management feature. He stated that will

be part of the Land Development discussion in the future.

Mr. Whitmore stated they propose a free-standing 12 square foot monument
sign out front. He stated there will be additional wall sighs mounted above the
front doors of the different Uses. He stated the H/C Code permits one 12’ sign
either a wall sign or a free-standing sign — not both. He stated they will discuss
the second sign for the K9 Resort with the Zoning Hearing Board. He stated



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 11 of 19

neither sign is out of character with the neighborhood, and it is identical with
what is at the KinderCare next door and the Senior Living Center across the
street.

Mr. Bush stated there is a newly-installed bike path that runs across the front
of this property and it goes across the bridge that goes over 295. He stated he
has seen a fair number of people using this bike path over the weekend.

He stated they will need to show the bike path on their Plan; and if this moves
forward there should be some signage on the bike path so that people know
that there are cars going in and out of this property.

Mr. Bush stated they have presented a proposed Retail component, but they
are only before the Planning Commission on the primary use of the building
not knowing what the secondary use of the building would be other than it
would be compatible with the primary use. He asked if they anticipate that
the 3,400 Retail space will need Zoning relief as well. Mr. Rusk stated they
do not believe so; but when a Use comes in that they feel is compatible, they
would come back before the Township for approval if required. Mr. Bush
stated without knowing the Use of that particular space, they are not really
sure how many parking spaces would be needed. Mr. Rusk stated they are
governed by National standards. He stated if it were some kind of unique
use that would be high traffic/high parking it would probably require permis-
sion from the Board. He stated they felt that most of the uses that would
want to go there would be permitted within the Zone.

Mr. Coyle stated they have indicated the use of porous pavement area for the
parking spaces, and he would like to verify that at this point, that is the intent;
and Mr. Rusk agreed. Mr. Rusk showed on the Plan where the road was
located when the greenhouses were existing. He stated they also believe that
they can fit all the stormwater management on the road that was there with-
out getting into the trees. He stated when they get to construction, if they
have to shift things in order to save trees, that will be their goal. Mr. Coyle
stated it appears that the top right section of the Lot is going to be preserved
as trees, and Mr. Rusk agreed. Mr. Rusk stated one of the reasons it has taken
so many years was because they wanted to come up with a Use that would
protect as much of the wooded area as possible.

Mr. Coyle stated there was fencing discussed along the Subdivision line, but
it is not shown on this Site Plan. He stated a Condition of approval could be
that the fencing be memorialized and maintained, and he asked Mr. Rusk if
he would agree to that Condition. Mr. Rusk stated they plan on keeping the



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 12 of 19

parcel as one ownership; however the Subdivision at this point is not cast in
stone, and it will be up to the Board of Supervisors to make some decisions

as to how they want to treat this. He stated they do not mind it being one Lot;
but if it helps to do a Subdivision to get through the Zoning issues, the fence
would go on the property line and would always be there. He stated the
property is already fenced, and he showed on the Plan where the existing
fence is located now and where they propose to install the additional fence
extending the existing fence out to the road.

Mr. Coyle stated a letter was provided from the operator of the KinderCare
indicating that they would be happy to have the pet resort as a neighbor, and
he asked when the KinderCare Lease is up. Mr. Rusk stated he believes it is at
least ten years plus options. He stated it is a very successful KinderCare.

Mr. Bush stated he appreciates the desire to save trees. He stated the last
Master Plan was updated in 2018, but none of the existing Planning Commis-
sion members were on the Commission at that time. He stated the Master
Plan discuses Use modifications in the Historic and the Overlay Zones, and
this is outside of that, and he feels the Commission should be cognizant of
that. He stated the Board of Supervisors approved the Master Plan in 2019,
and some of the Supervisors who were on the Board at that time are also
no longer on the Board today. He stated it seemed that the intention was
to encourage non-Residential uses like antique shops, professional offices,
cultural facilities, bed and breakfasts, etc. He stated this Use is not con-
sistent with what the stated goals were in 2019, recognizing that we are
almost in 2025.

Mr. Rusk stated the Master Plan called for very heavy development on this site;
and he feels they could develop about 80% to 90% of the site for Residential or
stores, but they never felt that type of development was appropriate in this
area even though it was approved across the street. He stated one of the
reasons this has taken so long was because they wanted to find a use that they
felt made sense. Mr. Bush stated he appreciated the fact that is their objective.

Mr. Coyle stated he does feel that this Use meets a need for the residents of
the Township; and if there is going to be a canine resort placed somewhere in
the Township, this area is probably the area that has the least impact on sur-
rounding Residential. Mr. Rusk stated he agrees that there is no place else in
the Township that this could be put that would not be a lot closer to residences.
He stated the sound engineer will indicate that the sound from the road will far
exceed any noise that would escape from the canine hotel.



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 13 of 19

Mr. Foley noted the building configuration with the side of the building facing
the front of the Lot, and he asked if there was any consideration to rotating
the building and having the parking lot along the frontage of Stony Hill.

Mr. Rusk stated the Township Zoning wants the building built on the road, and
they believe what they have proposed is the most environmentally-sensitive to
the area. He stated if they were to turn it the other way, they would have to cut
down more trees and there would be other issues. He stated they felt with the
existing clear-cut areas, having the frontage on the road the way the Ordinance
wants it, this is the best way to do it. Mr. Foley stated further down the street at
732 Stony Hill Road, they are building a configuration similar to what is proposed
here, but they have sidewalk and an entrance facing Stony Hill; and he asked if
they would look at additional sidewalk and connectivity in rotating the configura-
tion to have a front yard connection that could lead to the sidewalk as well as
the existing path. Mr. Rusk stated they could look at adding a sidewalk since
there are now the apartments on the other side of the highway. He stated he
still feels rotating the building would be problematic.

Mr. Foley stated they are showing 70% for woodland preservation, and he asked
if they are sure that can be met through the design process. Mr. Rusk stated they
believe that the way this was designed was the most effective way to design it
under the Zoning Code. Mr. Rusk stated if they were to disturb additional wood-
lands, they would need another Variance.

Mr. Foley asked about the trash removal operation, and he asked if it will be
off-peak hours. Ms. Miller stated at the existing facility, they have trash removal
once a week, and they come Monday morning before the facility opens.

Mr. Foley asked Ms. Miller if there have been any issues at her existing facility
with clients not parking in the parking lot and just doing a curbside drop-off.
Ms. Miller stated there was one customer with an infant who called ahead and
asked if they could bring the dog out. Mr. Tennant stated they do not allow
curbside drop-offs as part of their operations, and they require as part of the
custody transition that the owner come into the lobby.

Mr. Pete Spissak from Traffic Planning & Design, was present. He stated the
driveway as shown on the Site Plan which is across the street from the drive-
way of the Senior Living facility is in the correct spot. He stated on Stony Hill
Road there is an existing left-turn lane for the proposed driveway that had
been put in for the previous use. He stated it is roughly 65’ which would give
the ability to store two and potentially up to three cars.



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 14 of 19

Mr. Spissak stated a trip generation count was done at an existing K9 Resort
facility in New Jersey which had the same number of dogs that are proposed
for this facility. A chart was shown of the results of that count. He stated
counts were taken in the a.m. and p.m. peak hours, and generated 57 a.m.
trips and 52 p.m. trips. He stated they also utilized the Institute of Trans-
portation Engineers Trip Generation Manual to determine the General Retail
trips for the 3,400 square feet of Retail proposed, and for that it generated
14 a.m. peak hour trips and 36 p.m. peak hour trips. He stated based on these
numbers it is not a very high generating use as far as traffic is concerned, and
they do not foresee the need for a traffic signal. He stated additional studies
will have to be done given that this driveway is on a State road, and they will
be required to get a Highway Occupancy Permit from PennDOT. Mr. Spissak
stated this trip generation is very comparable to some of the approved uses
for the Zoning District as there could be a medical office building and a
restaurant on the site.

Mr. Coyle stated the chart shows 57 total trips in the a.m. with 33 entering
and 24 existing. Mr. Spissak stated there are employees that arrive in the
morning. Mr. Coyle stated in the p.m. there are 27 entering and 25 exiting

so 11 cars have disappeared. Mr. Spissak stated someone could have shown
up at 5:59 to pick their dog up but did not leave until the peak hour was over.
Mr. Coyle stated these numbers are all within the peak hours, and Mr. Spissak
agreed.

Mr. Rusk provided a recap of what will be shown with regard to the information
that the sound engineer will speak to, adding that there was a full report that
was sent to Mr. Majewski.

Mr. Ben Mueller, principal of Ostergaard Acoustical Associates, Woodbridge,
New Jersey, was present. He stated he has been practicing in the field of
applied acoustics for about twenty-three years. He stated they were brought
on to study the sound produced by the facility with the focus on dog barking
as that is what makes this use unique. He stated they look at the Code limits
and apply those standards and will take raw data which in this case they
acquired from an existing similar facility which was the Fanwood site that
was discussed earlier. He stated they applied that data as if it was present
at the subject site and compared that data to the Code limits and they also
did an ambient survey of the area and applied the levels to the ambient to
determine what impact there might be and to evaluate the potential
audibility.



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 15 of 19

Mr. Mueller showed a slide he created of an overlay of a Google Earth image
with the site over it. He stated his focus was on the outdoor play area on the
left side, and they were looking at what distances the dog parking activities
would be from areas of interest. He stated at the top it shows 365’ to the

play yard of the day care center next door, to the west across Stony Hill Road
it is approximately 270’ to the Senior facility, and it is 385’ to the Residential
Uses to the southwest of the site. He showed where they placed the monitors
with one set back from Stony Hill Road in the direction of the playground

area and other was on the side of the road to be in line with the Senior facility
and the residences there. Mr. Mueller stated the main noise in the area is from
Stony Hill Road by local traffic and a little bit from Interstate 295 to the north.

Mr. Mueller read the relevant Township Code — Section 200-66. He stated

if noise occurs at night, the limits are more stringent and are reduced by 3.
He stated there is also an adjustment to be done for non-continuous noise
which does apply to their facility in that sound that occurs for less than 5%
of an hour which is a three-minute time period is allowed a more-permissive
limit. He stated the reason for this is that if it is not continuous there is a
decrease in sensitivity toward occasional, intermittent activities.

Mr. Mueller stated Chapter 79 also discusses animals which addresses noise
from the facility in a more subjective manner, and prohibits disturbances

of the peace by repeated loud noises, and that Animal Control would
investigate any such nuisances. He stated there are no Pennsylvania or
Bucks County Codes that apply to noise so they are using the Lower Make-
Township Ordinance for their analysis.

Mr. Mueller stated in terms of enforcement there is language in the Ordinance
about property lines, and what he wanted to do was to look at how this would
affect the nearest receptors. He stated they heard discussion from the operator/
owner’s representative that the way the facility operates is that if there is exces-
sive barking, there is an escort that would remove the dog so that there would
not be dogs barking in excess of three minutes.

Mr. Mueller stated when he acquired his data at the Fanwood facility, they

were dealing with 30 medium-sized dogs who were led out and brought back

in without any barking occurring. He stated they then coordinated to get a
Doberman pincher which is a larger sized dog and measured the dog barking

25’ outside of the fence and they looked at repetitive barking and maximum
barking and also took into account any acoustical performance of the vinyl fence.



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 16 of 19

The results as shown in the chart were that the average maximum was 77 dba
and the highest was 80 dba. He stated as greater distance is introduced, the
sound falls off. He stated the KinderCare play area to the east is approximately
365’ from the exercise area, and they would expect to see levels between 54
and 57 from the average and maximum dog barking. He stated for the Senior
Facility 270’ away there were slightly higher results at 56 to 59, and the
furthest were the Windflower Lane residences to the south at 53 to 56.

Mr. Mueller stated making the analysis more specific to the site and more
accurate they wanted to take into consideration the orientation of the building
and it can be seen that the building will block all of the line of sight to the Kinder-
Care and the residences and they took a conservative reduction of 10 bd off of
the numbers. Mr. Mueller stated it was also indicated tonight that the pro-

posed enclosure will be a Bufftech sound fence which is a more robust material
than what he had measured which was a normal PVC fence, and the Bufftech
product is twice as dense which is better at attenuating sound traveling through it.
He stated by adding those adjustments, it reduces the sound further.

Mr. Mueller showed a slide which indicates that the ambient survey was
conducted February 2 through February 5, 2024 and the weather was conducive
to the measurement because they wanted to look at winds, precipitation, etc.

Mr. Mueller showed charts of the sound data taken from the two locations where
they had the monitors placed. He stated the highest levels during the daytime
were around noon. He stated the lowest levels of ambient sound are generally
measured around 2 a.m. when the streets are least active. He stated the focus
should be on 7 a.m. to 7 p.m. since that is when the dogs are dropped off and
picked up and bark occurrences would happen. He showed an overlay on the
ambient data with the gray line representing the highest maximum bark

which was to be 56 at the Senior Facility and that maximum falls well below

all the daytime activity that occurs. He stated there are some times when the
maximum level could be higher than the daytime activity, but that is only for a
limited period of time since a vehicle passing by is producing levels of 65 to 75.
He stated therefore if there was a lull in traffic a dog bark could be audible;
however, with respect to everything else that is currently occurring in the neigh-
borhood, it is a minimal time when it is audible and then shortly after that it will
be drowned out by a passing vehicle or other activity that is existing in the area.

He stated the orange line on the chart shows the average maximum bark
discussed previously, and that blends in even further. Mr. Mueller showed the
chart for the other monitor. Mr. Mueller stated they used the example of a



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 17 of 19

Doberman pincher which would have a higher level of bark with a lower
frequency and travel further, and he used that as the base of design as it is
conservative; and a smaller dog would have a higher pitched, lower level bark
that will not produce levels of the same magnitude.

Mr. Mueller stated there could be multiple dogs there at the same time, and
their barks are impulsive in nature of one second duration; and while there
could be multiple barks in a row, each one is short in nature so that even if
there is more than one dog who is also barking the chances of the two dogs
overlapping their barking at the same exact time such that it created an increase
in sound level is extremely unlikely. He stated they also heard that if there was
an instance where two or three dogs were getting excited at the same time, the
staff would address that behavior as soon as possible.

Mr. Mueller stated his conclusion is that they meet the performance standards,
and there will be no negative acoustical impact on the area; and that this is a
good location, and the orientation of the site as well as the upgraded fence

are efforts in being a good neighbor and insuring that the site conforms with
the surrounding area.

Mr. Coyle asked if he feels that the sound of a dog barking from collection
point 2 would not be audible over the standard street noise; and Mr. Mueller
agreed but added that there could be the incidence of a lull in the street
noise and the dog bark could be audible, but they have shown on several
days of collection and at the magnitude that they are expecting that it is a
lower level source in the area which means it is more likely to be blended

in with the neighborhood and more likely to be difficult to discern and it
would not become a nuisance.

Mr. Coyle stated he was looking at the orientation of the homes on Wind-
flower, and it seems that the garages are facing the proposed site, and

there are not balconies on the backs of the homes. Mr. McLoone stated

there are not. Mr. Mueller stated there are upper story windows, but those
are set back another 4’. Mr. Rusk stated he feels the ambient noise from Stony
Hill Road will be drowning out the dogs that might bark. He stated there are
garages in the back of those houses.

Mr. Coyle stated he has been to the Dog Park, and when there are happy dogs
in a play area together, they do not make the same sounds as dogs in a poorly
run kennel where dogs are neglected; and he would not expect constant noise.



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 18 of 19

Mr. Coyle asked the standards for outside time and asked if the outside area is
used consistently from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. Ms. Miller stated typically if the
weather is nice, they leave the doors open to the outside so that the dogs can
come and go. She stated if it gets above or below a certain temperature, they
bring the dogs in and keep the doors closed. She stated if the dogs do start to
get noisy, they can pull them all inside or can give time-outs to the dogs who
are causing the issue. She stated the private play area is outside, but it is only
one dog at a time; and because they are fenced in with a solid fence, there is
nothing to attract their attention to get them started barking when they are
out there by themselves. Mr. Coyle stated there could be several dozen dogs
in the play yard at a given time; and Ms. Miller stated conceivably there could
be, however her experience is that 80% of the dogs that are in the day care
group are inside at any given time. She stated they do have the ability to pull
them all inside and keep the doors closed. Mr. Coyle asked if the doors are
closed after 7:00 p.m.; and Ms. Miller agreed. Mr. Rusk stated there is always
staff with the dogs when they are outside.

Mr. Coyle asked if it is the opinion of the acoustic engineer that in the evening
the building would fully attenuate any sound of any overnight boarding dogs;
and Mr. Mueller agreed adding that while that was not the focus of his pre-
sentation tonight, it is a substantially different scenario for dog barking even
with the door open. He stated the attenuation afforded by the building
facade will be a substantial reduction, and he does not feel you would hear
anything even at the property line let alone across the street.

Mr. Rusk asked Mr. Mueller if he sees any adverse effect to the residents
across the street as far as the way the site has been designed and the way
the site is operated, and Mr. Mueller stated he does not.

Mr. Coyle asked Mr. Mueller how many similar facilities has he prepared
studies for over the last five years. Mr. Mueller stated this type of business
model is becoming more popular, and this is the fifth one that they have
worked on, three of which were for K9 Resort. He stated there have been no
issues with K9 Resort, and they have a good track record; and they are com-
fortable that how they have looked at this is a conservative but realistic way
as to how it will be perceived in the future.

Mr. Bush stated there was a letter in the packet that indicated that the Applicant
did not believe any portion of the property was classified as Regulated Wetland
or Water Course, and he asked Mr. Foley if he agrees with that assessment.



October 30, 2024 Planning Commission — page 19 of 19

Mr. Foley stated they looked at that letter but they have not fully investigated
that yet. He stated during the submission of the Land Development Application
they will look into this further and confirm those findings from the consultant.

Mr. Costello stated he is not sure how to vote on the Retail piece since it is not
known what parking would be required, and it is only known that there is a portion
of the building they are proposing to split off for a separate business. Mr. Coyle
stated the question before the Planning Commission is the Conditional Use on

the K9 Resort, and Ms. Carlton agreed. Ms. Carlton stated the Testimony was

that if the Retail would require further Zoning approval they would be back

before the Planning Commission and/or Zoning.

Mr. Coyle moved, and Mr. Costello seconded to recommend to the Board of
Supervisors’ approval of the Conditional Use so long as it is memorialized and
agreed to that a fence in good working order shall be constructed and
maintained between this proposed facility and the existing child care facility.

Mr. Costello stated it does not appear that the uses that are existing in this
area are really 100% what was in the Master Plan. He stated given what is in
is in the area, he feels this use is not inappropriate. Mr. Coyle stated he and
Mr. Costello discovered that skate shops are not a contemplated Use.

He stated while this Use is not listed as not permitted, and is not listed as a
Conditional Use, it is similar to what is existing. Mr. Bush stated what is in
the Master Plan was what was recommended for in the future to be contem-
plated as possible exceptions. He stated that was almost seven years ago.
Mr. Costello stated given the reality today, he does not feel what they are
proposing is out of bounds.

Motion carried unanimously.
There being no further business, Mr. Costello moved, Mr. Coyle seconded
and it was unanimously carried to adjourn the meeting at 9:30 p.m.

Respectfully Submitted,

Colin Coyle, Secretary



BULK REQUIREMENTS SITE DATA \ PARKING STALL REQUIREMENTS
PROPOSED PROPOSED PROPOSED PLAN REFERENCE USE REQUIREMENT EXISTING PROPOSED SECTION
REQUIREMENT REQUIRED EXISTING (K9 LOT) (DAYCARE (OVERALL SECTION PLAN TITLE ALTA/ACSM LAND TITLE SURVEY USE REQ. PARKING REQUIRED USE REQ. PARKING REQUIRED
LOT TRACT
) ) DATED: 11/03/2015 REVISED: 11/06/2015 DAYCARE CENTER 1 STALL PER TEACHER/EMPLOYEE PLUS 1 STALL PER 3 | 30 EMPLOYEES 047 30 EMPLOYEES 94.7 REQUIRED
BUILDING REQUIREMENTS SURVEYOR BLUE MARSH ASSOCIATES. ING. N OT Fo R co N ST R U CT I 0 N PUPILS 194 CHILDREN : 194 CHILDREN 56 EXISTING (EX)
MINIMUM GROSS LOT AREA (SF) NS 307,393 160,842 126,551 307,393 551 EASTON ROAD, SUITE A PET ROOMING / DAYCARE / 1 STALL PER EMPLOYEE PLUS 1 STALL PER 8 ANIMALS ~ ~ 10 EMPLOYEES 25.62 REQUIRED §200-79A
WARRINGTON, PA 18976 ASSOCIATED SERVICES OF CAPACITY 125 DOGS 20 PROPOSED (V)
AC NS 7.057 4.152 2.905 7.057 FILE NO: 15-B215-236
(AC) RETAIL 1 STALL PER 150 SF OF NET RETAIL FLOOR SPACE 22.67 REQUIRED
MINIMUM NETLOT AREA (5) (SF) 10000 182,538 65,288 117,310 162,598 §200-37.A APPLICANT/OWNER of RECORD THIS PLAN HAS BEEN PREPARED FOR GENERAL LAYOUT DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY 14 PROPOSED (V)
0) - 7100 s P 1o NAME WRG STONY HILL, LP AND IS BASED ON LIMITED DUE DILIGENCE AVAILABLE AT THE TIME OF PREPARATION e roTAL 007 roTAL 1429
MINIMUM LOT WIDTH @ FRONT BLDG ADDRESS PO BOX 437 USE 95 USE
UINE (FT) 75 768.77 348.77 420.00 768.77 YARDLEY. PENNSYLVANIA 19067 = m
PARKING PROVIDED 56 (EX 90 (V!
MINIMUM YARD SETBACKS PARCEL DATA SITE CAPACITY DETERMINATION (§200-52.A)
DISTRICT BOUNDARY (FT) 30 59.49 58.77 59.49 59.49/58.77 ADDRESS 748 STONY HILL ROAD K9 LOT DAYCARE LOT LOADI N G STALL REQ U I RE M E NTS
TOWNSHIP OF LOWER MAKEFIELD
STREET CENTERLINE | (FT) 30 184.1 79.08 184.1 184.10/79.08 §200-37.B BUKS GOUNTY. PA EXISTING PROPOSED
FT ’ DESCRIPTION ACRES SF ACRES SF USE REQUIREMENT SECTION
STREET RIGHT OF WAY | (FT) 5 122.2 20.0 122.2 122.20/20.0 TAX MAP NO/ TAX MAP No. 20-16-36-1 / UP| 20-016-036-001 SN e ——————— o o o v USE REQ. LOADING REQUIRED USE REQ. LOADING REQUIRED
PARCEL ID 15 . -905 .
SIDEYARD | (FT) 5/1205/ 1(:())R 26,93 20914 28.93 28.93/209.14 §200-37.C NON-RESIDENTIAL 1 STALL FOR EACH BUILDING 6,000 - 20,000 SF 1.0 §200-80
— ZONING DATA LAND WITHIN STREET & UTILITY TRANSMISSION ROW 0.000 0 0.000 0 oTAL > oTAL
i REQUIRED LOADING
seroack | FD 20 122.2 20.0 122.2 122.20/20.0 §200-63.D(1) ZONING DISTRICT | H/G - HISTORIC COMMERGIAL ZONING DISTRICT RESTRICTED COVENANT & CONSERVATION AREAS 0.000 0 0.000 0 USE p USE
MAXIMUM IMPERVIOUS COVERAGE (4) | (%) 80% 16.4% 14.2% 33.5% 22.1% EXISTING USE EXISTING USE - BASESITEAREA= |  4.152 180,842 2.905 126,551 LOADING PROVIDED 0 (EX) 0V)
DAYCARE - PERMITTED BY PREVIOUSLY APPROVED
= 115,554 9,241
(SF) 245914 50,416 25,603 42,385 67.988 VARIANCE SUBTRACT RESOURCE PROTECTED LAND 2.653 0.212
= 65,288 ; 117,310
MAXIMUM BUILDING COVERAGE (AA) (%) 40% 3.8% 6.4% 9.3% 7.6% §200-37.A PROPOSED USE PROPOSED USE : NET BUILDABLE AREA 1.499 2.693 | (V) VARIANCE REQUIRED | (EX) EXISTING NON-CONFORMANCE | (W) WAIVER REQESTED |
o DAYCARE - PERMITTED BY PREVIOUSLY APPROVED (AA) PURSUANT TO §200-52.C NET BUILDABLE AREA REGULATION IS NOT APPLICABLE TO THE H/C ZONING DISTRICT | (TBD) TO BE DETERMINED | (NA) NOT APPLICABLE | (NS)NOT SPECIFIED |
(SF) 122,957 11,766 11,645 11,766 23,411 VARIANCE THEREFORE MAXIMUM PERMITTED BUILDING COVERAGE IS CALCULATED BASED ON ALLOWABLE BUILDING COVERAGE % X
PET ROOMING / DAYCARE / ASSOCIATED SERVICES - BASE SITE AREA
MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT (FT) 35 <35 <35 <35 <35 NOT PERMITTED (V) -
5'TYPE 1 WITH 5 RETAIL - PERMITTED NATURAL RESOURCE PROTECTION TABLE (§200-51.B & 200-52.B.1)
MINIMUM RESIDENTIAL BUFFER HIGH SOLID BOARD 16.33 58.77 16.33 16.33/58.77
FENCE §200-73.D K9 LOT DAYCARE LOT
gnbr\JFlz/lEuRM PARKING LOT PERIPHERY FT) 5 1457 20.74 1457 14.57/2074 /\ A RESOURCE RESOURCE
o PROTECTION PROTECTION
PARKING REQUIREMENTS \ 0 » 7\ RESOURCE RESOURCE AREA RESOURCE AREA
100 X 180 (B 3 4”@ RESOURCE PROTECTION RATIO AREA (SF) (AREA X RATIO) AREA (SF) (AREA X RATIO)
MINIMUM STALL SIZE(3 FT , . . . 9.0 X 18.0 (W 10.0 X 18.0 (EX ' : 200-78.E N
®) D 100%200 10.0X18.0 ) ) 9.0 X 18 (W) s P \ FLOODPLAINS 100% 0 0 0 0
©
MINIMUM AISLE WIDTH (FT) NS 26 24 26 26/24 /\ m FLOODPLAIN SOILS ABUTTING DELAWARE RIVER 50% 0 0 0 0
S/D
MINIMUM VEHICLE, EQUIPMENT, TMP 20-16-49 \ SR POND (NATURAL OR MANMADE) AND POND SHORELINES (A) 100% 0 0 0 0
CONTAINER OR WASTE STORAGE (FT) SAMSEE’eré/Eg&SD'NG - 136.92 184.14 184.14/136.92 §200-38.D B 20115 040) Ay % TMP 20-16-49
SETBACK . A7n5 \ R 7 20-016—04 WETLANDS OR WATERS OF COMMONWEALTH (B) 100% 0 0 0 0
L. 30 Z 3
MINIMUM PARKING SETBACKS NP OF 1 OWER WKEEEL 0 ’?54,? \ o - " - WETLAND/WATERCOURSE BUFFER 100% 0 0 0 0
SAME AS ST 4G 4 v ARy S ) 2 D = - STEEP SLOPE (8%-14.99%) 50% 0 0 0 0
RESIDENTIAL | (FT) RESIDENTIAL 184.14 133.15 184.14 184.14/133.15 §200-38.G(1) PR 355 P £ .
BUFFER 46 \ P5 F STEEP SLOPE (15%-24.99%) 30% 0 0 0 0
M'N'M(')“’F',Lém\"'éé'xg '\S"T%FE'I\E/TE\SQE (FT) 20-35 71.22 88.22 (V) 95.65 (EN) 95.65/88.22 (V) §200-81.C \ STEEP SLOPE (25%*) 100% 0 0 0 0
\ WOODLAND (C) 70% 165,077 115,554 13,202 9,241
LOADING SPACE REQUIREMENTS
MINIMUM LOADING SPACE SIZE (FT) 12.0 X 40.0 12.0 X 40.0 12.0 X 40.0 / \ \ TOTAL ACRES OF RESOURCE PROTECTION LAND 195,077 115,554 13202 524
: : 0 (EN) : : 0 (EN) : : §200-81 \ (A) NATURAL OR MANMADE WATER AREAS INCLUDING RETENTION OR DETENTION BASINS OF 20,000 SQUARE FEET OR GREATER AND ALL AREAS WITHIN 50 FEET
MINIMUM CLEAR HEIGHT (FT) 14 >14 14 OF THE EDGE OF THE WATER MEASURED FROM THE MEAN WATER LEVEL.

| (V) VARIANCE REQUIRED | (EN) EXISTING NON-CONFORMANCE | (W) WAIVER REQUESTED |

| (TBD) TO BE DETERMINED | (NA) NOT APPLICABLE | (NS) NOT SPECIFIED |

(1) COVERAGE = BUILDING SQUARE FOOTAGE / BASE SITE AREA. UNDERGROUND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT OR POROUS PAVEMENT SHALL BE USED.

(2) SETBACKS FROM RESOURCE-PROTECTED LANDS. ON LOTS WHICH INCLUDE LANDS WITH RESOURCE RESTRICTIONS, THE MINIMUM BUILDING SETBACKS SHALL BE MEASURED FROM THE
LIMIT OF THE RESOURCE PROTECTED LANDS RATHER THAN FROM THE LOT LINES SO THAT THE REQUIRED MINIMUM YARD IS FREE FROM RESOURCE RESTRICTED LANDS.

(3) UNLESS OTHERWISE PERMITTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS DURING THE PROCESS OF REVIEWING AND APPROVING A SUBDIVISION/LAND DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION.

(4) IMPERVIOUS COVER = IMPERVIOUS SURFACE / GROSS LOT AREA

(5) NET LOT AREA = GROSS LOT AREA - RESOURCE PROTECTION LAND - RECREATION LAND - EASEMENT FOR PIPELINES

REFERENCES:

1. THE OFFICIAL TAX MAPS OF BUCKS COUNTY, TOWNSHIP OF LOWER MAKEFIELD,

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA.
2. MAP ENTITLED "FIRM, FLOOD

INSURANCE RATE MAP, BUCKS COUNTY,
PENNSYLVANIA (ALL JURISDICTIONS)," PANEL 432 OF 532, MAP NUMBER NO.

42017C0432J, MAP REVISED MARCH 16, 2015.

3. MAP ENTITLED "FINAL PLAN, MINOR SUBDIVISION PLAN PREPARED FOR TAX
PARCEL 20-16-36, DAVID M. & MILDRED R. BROADWAY, LOWER MAKEFIELD
TOWNSHIP, BUCKS COUNTY, PA", PREPARED BY J.G. PARK ASSOCIATES, INC.,

RECORDED 3-26-1986 IN PLAN BOOK 232, PAGE 26.

4. MAP ENTITLED "PATTERSON FARM, MINOR SUBDIVISION/LOT CONSOLIDATION,
TOWNSHIP OF LOWER MAKEFIELD, BUCKS COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA", PREPARED
BY REMINGTON, VERNICK & BEACH ENGINEERS, RECORDED 11-9-2011 IN PLAN

BOOK 385, PAGE 12.

5. MAP ENTITLED "PRELIMINARY PLAN, RECORD PLAN, EDGEWOOD CROSSING,
T.M.P. 20-14-8 & 20-16-36, LOWER MAKEFIELD TOWNSHIP, BUCKS COUNTY",
PREPARED BY REI STRUCTURAL & CIVIL ENGINEERING, RECORDED 11-5-2010 IN

PLAN BOOK 380, PAGE 77.
6. MAP ENTITLED

"EASEMENT PLAN, DEED BOOK 5487, PAGE 1497, LOWER
MAKEFIELD TOWNSHIP, BUCKS COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA",

REMINGTON, VERNICK & BEACH ENGINEERS, DATED 4/2/2012.

PREPARED BY

PAVEMENT HATCH LEGEND

REGULAR DUTY ASPHALT

POROUS ASPHALT

CONCRETE

TMP 20-16-49

N
AN

TMP 20-16-49-T+

OUTDOOR EXERCISE
AND DAYCARE AREA
(2,250 SF)

[LANDSCAPE SCREEN

&
/0 &
3° ®
(,;QD “;)Q \MOLDED PVC SCREEN FENCE
o)

RD SETBACK

20' FRONT YARD 5%

L///

—R=3899.63'
L=162.32'
A=02°23'06"
CHB=N52°03'06"W
CHD=162.31"'

EXISTING EASEMENT

(B) PURSUANT TO THE USDA NRCS WEB SOIL SURVEY, THE FOLLOWING SOILS ARE NOT PRESENT ON THE PROPERTY: BO BOWMANSVILLE SILT LOAM, HA
HATBORO SILT LOAM, FA FALLSINGTON, DO DOYLESTOWN, TOA TOWHEE AND TOB TOWHEE STONY

FEET ABOVE THE GROUND.

(C) AWOODLAND IS ONE-QUARTER ACRE OR MORE OF WOODED LAND WHERE THE LARGEST TREES MEASURE AT LEAST SIX INCHES DIAMETER AT A HEIGHT OF
4.5 FEET FROM THE GROUND AND THE ASSOCIATED INTERMEDIATE LAYERS IN THESE AREAS, INCLUDING THE UNDERSTORY SHRUBS AND SMALLER TREES, THE
GROUND LAYER OF HERBACEOUS PLANTS AND THE FOREST FLOOR. THE WOODLAND SHALL BE MEASURED FROM THE DRIPLINE OF THE OUTER TREES.
WOODLANDS ARE ALSO A GROVE OF TREES FORMING ONE CANOPY WHERE 10 OR MORE TREES MEASURE AT LEAST 10 INCHES IN DIAMETER AT A HEIGHT OF 4.5

(D) THE BOARD MAY CONSIDER THE EXTENT TO WHICH THE STEEP SLOPE IS MAN-MADE RATHER THAN NATURAL AND WHETHER ITS DISTURBANCE WILL
FACILITATE, IN THE OPINION OF THE BOARD, THE OPTIMAL DESIGN FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY (§200-51.(B).(5).().[5]).

300' SETBACK

A PAVEMENT AND UTILITIES £
\ TO BE REMOVED oy
=
\ / . S
. 3 / \
(S \-.
/\Q)?g \
TENTATIVE STORMWATER ng \'-
: MANAGEMENT AREA & \.. — o
7‘96‘ / 6\0((/ \_'
4 5 s
SUBDIVISION LINE i \
/ 35 \
75 .
\..
/7
TRASH ENCLOSURE] y
TMP 20-16-36-1
K LR SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT
/4 : (PER D.B. 2750, PG. 763)
RG STONY HILL, LF (PER REF. MAP §5)
PROPOSED [4 CHAIN LINK FENCEF——___| o S o
RETAIL ! Crs 27
X
(3,400 SF) - ? TMP 20-14-8
1 = BN () 17=64
- PAVEMENT AREA = W y
> E POROUS PAVEMENT $ 5 6675 AR /-
g AREA w op 30 B 7
dia 4
¥ N
-~ PROPOSED H 82.14'
2 K-9 RESORT @ x
g (8,245 SF) i
: I <
® - T z,o
E WALL MOUNTED SIGN | | X g
- 12 SF : : =
e 118 26' Ve
10 18 %\ g " ! &
1 ! @ 0
L8 | 20' FRONT YARD SETBACK ( o !
L N~
(=] 3 <] MONUMENT SIGN (12 SF)
& l . MON 2' DECORATIVE BASE
! — 560.51' \
N 47°47'52" W P.O.B
2 g = P
N e e S e . L
| B
. —_—— | X
88.22° o J {\ l <
%\ T | S
_ s oK (e —— )1 i n»\ “W\“W\aﬁ\ - 4
= g0 T " v o . o . \—OM\W\“W\W\
—— OH———7
1 — p— peee O l i D N ! 0 o o o o 3
oH O OH\’—'W OH———oH———0H on-—oH—— il | 7=

R=3879.72'—~

L=207.30'
A=03°03'41"

CHB=N49°19'43"W

CHD=207.28'

STONY HILL ROAD

(A.K.A. S.R. 2069)(A.K.A. L.R. 09134)

(A.K.A. NEWTOWN-FALLSINGTON ROAD)
(VARHBLE WIDTH R.OW,)(PUBLIC ROADWAY)

-
.\.. ~ Q
-,
~ 53
e
..
i
!
-
\..\
o L

e

GRAPHIC SCALE

1INCH =40 FEET

& LANDCORE

PHONE 215-836-2510

LANDCORECONSULTING.COM

PHILADELPHIA, PENNSYLVANIA 19101-0635

PO BOX 37635 #56287

4
o
=
()
=
[+ 4
™
(72
4
o
o
(24
o
L.
-
[}
4
-4 -4
2333335
w
(8)
<
o
(7]
=
<
=
1)
o
SV n®
==
zz=z
»n oW ;W
EFE =S =
- IEHE
[ Q9o @
FE2<0g0
22V Ly,
a9k zZ2E o
> L Z g < 0
>!’,°EZEQ
W =W
S 29N 00 n
CAEAEN A S
D W Www W
o0 xaoaaoo o
O N YT O ® O
YV ?Y
- O v v = O L
O ™ O v v v |
Lo o<
T FTOMOONO O S
N N NN NN
© 600 oo
N NNNGNN
omﬂ-murﬁ
[ad
PROJECT No. 150064
FILE ccé
DRAWN BY A. RODRIGUEZ
CHECKED BY R. WHITMORE
=
=
T}
=
o
(=]
|
i -
> o
a = 3]
2 2 Z o
= = -
©On O E <
e ] <
EOD<E - |
DC_ID_n_ n-
E_IE>:°
O | =
arxs = Ao
Q>3 W w
800500 =
n.('7)L|_ICQU z
g2:C 2 O
aN 93 & (&)
2
'_
oS
w | @
) i 5
8 [a¥ =
o | < —
DATE 2023 - 09 -26

CPT

SHEET

6

REV. No.






Proposed K9 Resort - Lower Makefield, PA EEEE S8 i : : P Tt s
Site Overlay and Vicinity g £ P o
Ambient Measurement Locations 2 ' '

)
=i
@*

F
|

"

iSemorfn



B.Mueller
Image

B.Mueller
Text Box
1

B.Mueller
Text Box
2

B.Mueller
Text Box
Proposed K9 Resort - Lower Makefield, PA
Site Overlay and Vicinity
Ambient Measurement Locations

B.Mueller
Length Measurement
365'-0"

B.Mueller
Length Measurement
385'-0"

B.Mueller
Length Measurement
270'-0"


Noise Regulations

Township of Lower Makefield
e Zoning Code Performance Standards §200-66

o Maximum sound levels for continuous noise
= 65 dB(A) at industrial receptors
= 60 dB(A) for commercial receptors
= 55 dB(A) for residential receptors
Night limits (2200-0700) reduced by 3 dB
If noise occurs less than 5% of any one-hour (3 minutes) limits are +5 dB
Limits for impulsive sound apply to the average pressure during impulse

O O O O

Limits apply at the property line where the source occurs, based on receptor
category

e Chapter 79: Animals
o Prohibits animals from disturbance of the peace by repeated loud noise
o Animal control authority would investigate nuisances

No State or Bucks County Noise Codes



Discussion of Code

e Standards apply at source property line. However, judgement is often required.
o Protect public health, safety, and well being
o Enforcement typically occurs at location of repose
o Parking lots or inaccessible locations not scrutinized
o Vacant/unoccupied lots and rights-of-way not applicable

e Dog barking at site is daytime only. Outdoor activity is supervised and would

not occur for more than 3-minutes in a given hour.

e Based on code adjustment: residences 60 dB(A) and commercial 65 dB(A) apply

e Typical car passbys in the area can readily range from 60-to-65 dB(A) at receptor
vantages. Hence meeting code limits will ensure no negative acoustical impact

on the area



Analysis

e Visiting a similar facility in Fanwood, NJ. Outdoor barking was not a common
occurrence, even with 30 dogs outside.

e Controlled testing of a Doberman Pincher behind a vinyl fence (using fast

response) resulted in average maximum barking of 77 dB(A) and highest
maximum of 80 dB(A) measured at 25 feet.

e Projected results to nearby receptors using distance alone

Noise-Sensitive Receptor Distance from Dog Bark Sound Level,
Exercise Area dB(A)
(feet) Average Highest
Maximum Maximum
KinderCare play area to East 365 54 57
Artis Senior facade to Southwest 270 56 59

Windflower Lane houses to South 385 53 56



e Screening and improved sound fence
o Buildings screen to east and southeast. Assume 10 dB
o Improved sound fence. Assume 3 dB

e Final results based on distance and shielding attenuation

Noise-Sensitive Receptor Distance from Dog Bark Sound Level,
Exercise Area dB(A)
(feet) Average Highest
Maximum Maximum
KinderCare play area to East 365 44 47
Artis Senior facade to Southwest 270 53 56

Windflower Lane houses to South 385 43 46



Ambient Survey

e Two long term sound level monitors deployed February 2-through-5 2024

Friday through Monday

Weather conducive to sound level survey

Location 1 — near daycare playground

e Location 2 — Set back from Stony Hill Road similar to senior center and

residences



Proposed K9 Resort - Lower Makefield, PA EEEE S8 i : : P Tt s
Site Overlay and Vicinity g £ P o
Ambient Measurement Locations 2 ' '

)
=i
@*

F
|

"

iSemorfn



B.Mueller
Image

B.Mueller
Text Box
1

B.Mueller
Text Box
2

B.Mueller
Text Box
Proposed K9 Resort - Lower Makefield, PA
Site Overlay and Vicinity
Ambient Measurement Locations

B.Mueller
Length Measurement
365'-0"

B.Mueller
Length Measurement
385'-0"

B.Mueller
Length Measurement
270'-0"


1-Minute L., Sound Pressure Level Time History at Location 1

LN
=
(@]
<
N
(g\]
4
o
o
o
LN
<
O
T
o
o
>
o
©
>
—
o]
(]
L
o
=
o
N
~
(g\]

85

75

i

)

.‘I'F“"Lm_

TN ‘J\

N N
o N

(v)gp ‘|oAe7 aunssaud punos

n
<

35

e Average Maximum Bark

=== Highest Maximum Bark

25

INd 0S°¢T
ANV 0S5:0T
NV 0S:8
AV 0S:9
AV 0S¥
NIV 0S:¢
AV 0S:¢T
NId 0S:0T
Nd 0S§:8
IAId 0S:9
Nd 0§
IAId 0S:C
Nd 0S:CT
AV 0S:0T
NV 0S:8
NIV 0S:9
AV 0S¥
NV 0S¢
NIV 0S:¢T
Nd 0S:0T
INd 0S:8
AId 0S:9
AId 051
Nd 0S§°¢
NId 0S:CT
NIV 0S:0T
NV 0S:8
AV 059
NIV 057
NV 0S¢
NIV 0S:CT
NId 0S:0T
INd 0S:8
INd 0S:9
AId 051
Nd 0S§°¢
Nd 0S:CT

Time



1-Minute L,,,, Sound Pressure Level Time History at Location 2

LN
~
o~
N
~
~

4

AN

o

(@

LN

<

O

v

N

o

>
—_
©
>
—
Neo]
0}

(T
o
~
o~
o
~
~

85

75

N n
o wn

(v)ap ‘|oAe7 aunssaud punos

L

35

e Average Maximum Bark

== Highest Maximum Bark

25

Nd 0S:CT
AV 0S:0T
AV 0S8
AV 05:9
AV 057
AV 0S¢
AV 0S:¢T
Nd 0S:0T
AId 058
Nd 0S:9
Nd 0S¥
AId 0S¢
Nd 0S:CT
AV 0S:0T
AV 0S8
AV 05:9
AV 057
AV 0S¢
AV 0S:¢T
Nd 0S:0T
AId 058
Nd 0S:9
Nd 0S¥
AId 0S¢
Nd 0S:CT
AV 0S:0T
AV 0S8
AV 05:9
AV 057
AV 0S¢
AV 0S:¢T
Nd 0S:0T
AId 058
Nd 0S:9
Nd 0S¥
AId 0S¢
Nd 0S:CT

Time



Conclusions

e Conservative results show no maximum sound level will be over 56 dB(A).

o Not taking into account improved 8 ft sound fence or building to

east/southeast
o Bark data are fast response not slow

e Meets performance standards at locations of repose

e Compared to prevailing ambient sound, dog barks will well below existing
daytime activity and hence difficult to discern

e Civen the above, there will be no negative acoustical impact on the area.



LOCALIQ

Erie Times-News | The Intelligencer
Bucks County Ceourier Times

PO Box 630531 Cincinnati, OH 45263-0531

The Daily American | Beaver County Times
Pocono Record | Burlington County Times

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

Jim Majewski

Lower Makefield Township
1100 Edgewood RD
Yardley PA 19067-1689

STATE OF PENNSYLVANIA, COUNTY OF BUCKS

The Bucks County Courier Times, a newspaper of general
circulation, published and having its place of business at
Levittown, Bucks County, PA; that said newspaper was
established in 1910; that attached hereto is a facsimile of
the printed notice which is exactly as printed and published
in said newspaper issue dated on:

01/23/2025, 01/28/2025

That said newspaper was regularly issued and circulated on
those dates.

Sworn to and s 1/28/2025

/ ,ﬂ /ﬂ aiirﬁ'/ —

Legal Clerk

cribed before on

"Brown

12024

My commission dxpires |

Publication Cost; $214.66

Tax Amount: $0.00

Payment Cost: $214.66

Order No: 10959218 # of Coples:
Customer No: 791858 1

PO #:

THIS IS NOT AN INVOICE!

Please do not use this form for payment remittance.

AMY KOKOTT |
Notary Public !

State of Wisconsin E

NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIV-
EN that the Lower Makefield
Township Board of Supervi-
sors will hold a public hear-
ing on Wednesday, February
5, 2025 at 7:30 p.m. in the in
the Lower Makefield Town-
ship Municipal Building ot
1100 Edgewood Road, Yard-
ley, PA 19067 to hear the
opplication of MRG Stony
Hill LP who are requesting
Conditional Use approval
pursuont to Zoning Ordi-
nonce §200-36.B to permit a
kennel use in the Historic-
Commercial (H/C) Zoning
District. The property is lo-
coted at 748 Stony Hill Road,
Yardley, PA 19067, Tax par-
cel 20-016-036-001. Any inter-
ested person desiring fo
ottend the hearing will be
given the opportunity to be
heard.

Page 1 of 1



NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Lower Makefield
Township Board of Supervisors will hold a public
hearing on Wednesday, February 5, 2025 at 7:30
p.m. in the Lower Makefield Township Municipal
Building at 1100 Edgewood Road, Yardley, PA 19067
to hear the application of:

MRG Stony Hill LP
748 Stony Hill Road, Yardley, PA 19067
Tax parcel 20-016-036-001

The applicant is requesting Conditional Use
approval pursuant to Zoning Ordinance 8200-36.B to
permit a kennel use in the Historic-Commercial
(H/C) Zoning District. Any interested person
desiring to attend the hearing will be given the
opportunity to be heard.

LOWER MAKEFIELD TOWNSHIP
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

DATE: January 15, 2025



20-014-008 20-012-003-001

MAKEFIELD WOODSIDELLC ARTIS SR LIV, LLC

PO BOX 291 765 STONY HILL RD
YARDLEY PA 19067 YARDLEY, PA 19067
20-013-003

DELONG, PAUL & JOSEPH FLOWERS FIELD

747 STONY HILL RD 975 EASTON RD SUITE 102
YARDLEY, PA 19067 WARRINGTON, PA 18976
TROILO

1742 LANGHORNE YARDLEY RD
YARDLEY, PA 19067



	pc-103024-meeting-minutes.pdf
	4744A K9 Resort Yardley - Noise Presenation (1).pdf
	10959218.pdf
	NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Lower Makefield Township Board of Supervisors will hold a public hearing on Wednesday.pdf
	Surrounding Property Labels.pdf
	PC Meeting Summary 2024.10.30.pdf



